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New Lanark 
' ... you come to a spot, as you descend the hill, 
where you have afull view of th e great Falfs of 
Clyde. with the accompanying rocks and woods 
which form the banks of the rivel~ At the same 
time you see the green hills, and cattle and sheep 
feeding on them, at the summits of the banks on 
each side, and over the laps of the trees. The jine 
buildings oflhefactories arejusl under you: and 
this, all taken togeth el~ is by jilr the most beautijid 
Sight that my eyes ever heheid.' 

William Cobbett, from Cobbett~· Tour in Scotland, 
1832. 

The village of New Lanark in west-central 
Scot land, in a spectacular loca tion beside the 
Ri ver Clyde, is an outstanding mon ument of 
industrial and soc ial histo ry. Designated a World 
Heritage Site in 200 I , it is of interna tional 
importance as an examp le of socia l plann ing and 
industri al innovation from tbe period of Britain's 
great Industrial Revolu ti on. 

Bui lt in the late 18th and ear ly 19th century, 
the village was largely abandoned and under 

serious threat of demolition as recently as the 
1970s but has been extensively restored over 
the last th ree decades and rece ives thousands 
of vis ito rs from home and abroad every year. 
Orig inal mills, hous ing and commu nity buildings 
survive, most ly bui lt from sa ndstone quarried in 
the locality; the surviving compl ex represe nts the 
va ri ed elemen ts of a purpose-built manufacturing 
settl ement . The purpose of this publication is io 
ill ustrate key aspec ts of its buildings and history. 

New Lana rk was builtjnst down stream 
from the dramatic Fa ll s of Clyde - the largest 
waterfa ll s in Britain in terms of vo lume - whi ch 
were a great sou rce of inspirat ion to writers and 
arti sts ill the 18th and 19th centuries. The Fa ll s 
were not, however, recogni sed sole ly fo r their 
aesthetic importance . When th e great industria l 
innovator Richard Arkwright vis ited the location 
in 1784, invited by Glasgow businessman and 
ph ilanthropist David Da le, he rea li sed th e 
enormous potentia l; the power of the rive r in 
descent co uld be harnessed to run innovative 
machinery for the ma ss-producti on of tex til es. 
The banks of the River C lyd e were to become one 
of the hotbeds of the Industrial Revolution, when 
Britain led the worl d in the race to move from 

New Lanarkji-oll1lh.e east. Watercolour by John Winning, c. 181 8. (NLCT) 

moni toring systems and employed wa tchmen to 
prevent disorderly behaviour. The profit mot ive 
was therefore central to Owe n's concerns, but 
it was a lli ed to paternalistic management that 
sought to introduce more humane working 
practices than were typical of the early 19th 
century. In the quarter-centu ry he was associated 
with the village, Owen sought to introduce 
various developments reflecting his philosophy 
that factory owners had a mora l obligation to 
imp rove the well-being of the ir wo rkers through 
the provis ion and maintenance of good-qu ality 
housing, progressive education and communal 
ca re. 

Under the contro l of Owe n, various new 
communal buildings were constructed inc ludi ng 
the Nursery Buildi ngs, the Institution for the 
Formation of Character, the co-operative store 

and the School fo r Children . The store so ld 
superior-quality goods for th e village inhabitants 
at below normal market pr ices and is now 
recognised to be an important precursor of the 
Co-operative movement, which became a key 
part of the fabric of urban life in Bri ta in in the 
late 19th and 20th centuries. The In stitution for 
the Formation of Character, known simply as 
' the Institute', was used for lesso ns, lectures, 
da ncing and musica l performances. Owen placed 
great emphasis 011 education for child ren at a 
time when it was common fo r those empl oyed in 
factories to wo rk contin ually tlu'oughout the day 
and to rece ive little if any schoolin g. Due to hi s 
in fluence, New Lanark has often been portrayed 
as one mode l for a Utopian society - an ideal of 
enlightened thinking. Its location ami dst one of 
the IllOst beautiful landscapes in central Scotland 
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manufactur ing by hand to mec han ised production of fi re was a maj or cons ideration throughout tbe 
on a massive sca le. peri od, and Mill Num ber 3, wh ich was rebuilt 

Shortly after Arkwri ght's initial v isit he and fo ll ow ing a disastrous fire in 18 19, is an early 
Dav id Dal e secu red fm m a loca l land owner the example of iron-framed rathe r than timber 
rights to the g rou nd on wh ich New Lanark was 
built. The sett lement was g iven its name due 
to its prox imity to the ancient Royal Bmgh of 
La nark, situa ted on hi ghet· g roun d to the north­
east of the river. Constru ctio n began on the fi rst 
mil l in 1785 , but the re were majo r eng ineerin g 
pm blems to be overcome in establi shing bas ic 
manufactur ing fac ili ties . . In order to direct. the 
power of the water to the mi lls, a wei r had to be 
built across the river and a tunnel some 300m 
long excavated through bedrock. 

A lthough these operati ons were largely canied 
out by hand rathe r tha n by mechanica l means, 
the first mi 11 was runnin g by early 1786. A 
second mill was under construction in 1789 and 
by the 1790s th ere we t'e foUl' mills i.n operation, 
emp l y in g over 1,300 peo ple. Va t'ious techni cal 
innovations to im prove th e efficiency and safety 
of mills and spinning mac hin es were in troduced 
and ['efin ed at New Lanark, especiall y by loca l 
clock-maker and inventor Wi ll iam Ke lly during 
David Da le's period of ownership. Prevention 

construction. 
The worke rs, many of whom were from 

the Scottish Highl and s, were housed in well­
constructed tenement blocks whi ch stand on 
ris ing ground to the north and east of the mills. 
The tenements wc rc bu il t of loca l sandstonc and 
roofed with 'Scotch' slate . Alth ough more than 
one fami ly might share a nat of two rooms, the 
accomm odation prov ided fo r the workers at New 
Lanark was of a higher standard than was typical 
of the period . By 1821, the popu lation bad risen 
to 2,300, making it one of the largest planned 
communiti es in Euro pe. 

In 1799, after some deliberati on, David Dale 
agreed to sell New Lanark to the We lsh-born 
businessman Rober t Owen and hi s Mancheste r­
based partners. This s igna lled a major 
development in th e organi sation of the village, as 
Owen became in creas ing ly interested in making 
New La nark a centre of soc ia l refo rm. Yet he was 
not simply idealistic. He imp roved til e efficiency 
and productivity of the mi li s, developed close-

New LaITat*}l-olll tlte norlh. Watercolour by John Win ning, c. 1818. (NLCT) 

added to its fame as a place where factory labour 
was not merely exp lo itative but enhanced human 
dignity. 

By 1824 , however, Owen was in disputc with 
hi s partners at New Lanark. They objected to 
some of his more experimental id eas about how 
the village should be run . When he was given the 
opportun ity to part icipate in a new community 
venture in America - New Harmony in [n diana 
- he ended his quarter-century of interest in New 
Lanark and left in December 1824. The mi lls 
and vi ll age were run from 1825 until 1881 by 
the Wa lker fa mil y, and then by Henry Birkmyre. 
Hi s Gou rock Ropework Company (established 
1777) changed th e di t'ection of manufacturing at 
the village, bei ng suppli ers of ropes, sail - ri ggin g, 
nets, ca nvas and ai lcloth. It was at one time the 
la rgest company of its kind in the wo rld but it 

New Lanark tenements, I 960s. (NLCT) 

closed with the loss of 350 jobs in 1968 and in 
1970 the site was sold lo a scrap metal company. 

Althou gh New Lanark was given some 
statuto ry protection by the mid 1970s, its future 
was sti ll uncertain until it was made the subj ect 
of a Comp ulsory Purchase Order in 1983, taking 
it out of the control of th e company who owned 
it and placing it in publi c ownership. Throughout 
the 1980s and 1990s, various programmes of 
work were undertake n to restore the village as 
a living heritagc ccntrc. By th c bcginni ng of 
the 2 1 st century, as well as hav ing a res ident 
popul ation of arou nd 200 peop le, the village 
had become an award-winn ing intern ational 
attract ion, culminating in New Lanark becoming 
tile first industrial heritage s ite ill Scotland to be 
included in UNESCO's li st of World Heritage 
Sites. 
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The Royal Commission on the Ancient and 
Hi storical Monuments of Scotland (RCAHMS) 
collects, records and interprets information on 
the arch itcctural, industrial, archaeological and 
maritime heritage of Scotland. Whether you are 
working, teaching, studying or simply exploring 
your local heritage, RCAHMS resources are 
avai lable to ass ist your research. You can use OUI 
online databases and mapping services to view 
over 60,000 digita l images and to search for 
information on more tllan 250,000 bui ldings or 
sites, over a million aerial photographs and some 
2.5 million other photographs, d.rawings and 
manuscripts . You can then visit our search room 
to consul t origillal archive material (Monday to 
Friday, 9.30am - 4.30pm). 
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New Lanark Conservation Trust 
In 1968, the closure of the New Lanark mills 
caused a major crisis. A pilo[ project by the local 
Housing Association, formed ill 1963 to refurbish 
the old tenement homes, was halted. In 1970, 
the industrial part oftbe vi llage area was sold to 
a scrap metal company. Intervention by public 
agencies and conservation bod ies was required if 
decline and decay were to be haltcd and reversed. 

A Working Group was set up to examine 
options fo r the future of the vi llage. In 1973, 
it publ ished A Future for New Lanark and 
recommended that full restoration of the 
village sbould be attempted. The local Planning 
Department began the process of li sting all the 
bui ldings (Category A) and having tile village 
designated as an Outstanding Conservation Area. 
In 1974, New Lanark Conservation Trust was 
formed as an independent charity, charged wi th 
the challenging task of restor ing and revitalising 
the historic vi llage. Housing restoration 
recommenced . In 1983, the mills and institute 
were brought into public ownership by means of 
a Compulsory Purchase Order. This was the first 
time that this legislation was used in Scotland to 
help recover hi stori c buildings. 

Under the direction of Jim Arnold, appo inted 
in 1974, New Lanark Conservation Trust 
has pioneered a radical approach to heritage 
management. The village remains a living 
commun ity, with a rcsident population of around 

200 people. There are 45 tenancies and 20 
privately owned houses. Around 180 people are 
employed in New Lanark, mostly by the Trust and 
its two trading subsidiaries. 

New Lanark Trading Ltd., established in 
1989, operates the award-winning Visitor Centre. 
Permanent exh ibitions interpret various aspects of 
the village's history including Owen's enlightened 
education system, living and working conditions, 
textile production and the restoration of the 
buildings. New Lanark Hotels Ltd. , established 
in 1997, operates the New Lanark Mill Hotel 
and the Water-houses sel [-catering apartments . 
Hydro-electricity is generated on site to supply 
thc Hotel and Vis itor Centre; surplus electricity 
is exported to the grid. Profits generated by the 
trading companies are returned to the Trust for 
reinvestment. 

ew Lanark has become an international 
attraction, welcoming vis itors and educational 
groups from a II over the world. In 2001 it was 
inscribcd on UNESCO's World Heritage List. 

For mOI'e information visit 
www.newlanark.org 

New Lanark Conservation Trust 
New Lanark Mills 
Lanark ML I 1 9DB 
t +44 (0) 1555 661345 
f +44 (0) 1555 665738 
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4. Site of Mill Number 4 
This mill , destroyed by fire in 1883 by workmen 
lIsing a naked flame wben can-ying out repairs, 
was built in the late 18th century. Only its 
founda tions and its western gable wa ll survive. 
A replacement water-wheel has been insta lled in 
the wheel-pit to demonstrate the use of water­
power fTom the mill -lade. (SC754873) 
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1. M ill Number 1 (Mill Hotel) 
Begun in 1785 and rebuilt in 1789 after 
afire, this is the oldest-surviving mill 
on the site. Its elaborate stair-tower 
in the centre of the main front shows 
industrial bu ild ings of this period could 
possess considerable architectural 
ambition. The upper two storeys were 
removed for stabi lity reasons in 1945 
but were rebui lt in a restoration of 
1993- 96 which conve rted the mill to 
use as an hotel. (SC754825) 

2. Mill Number 2 
Probably begun about 1789, this mill 
was w idened in the 1880s and its 
fayade rebu ilt in brick. Access was 
provided to Mill Number l by means 
of a link-block of 19th-century datc. 
(SC7548 19) 

3. Mill Number 3 
Built around 1830, thi s m ilJ replaced 
one on the same site destroyed by 
fire in 1819. [t is remarkable for its 
fireproof internal consh'uction, with 
brick arches supported by cast-iron 
beams and colwllns. The basement 
houses a turbine, installed in 1931 , 
which is still used to generate hydro­
e lectric ity. (SC754841) 

5. Water-houses 
These were built by Robert Owen in the early 19th 
century as part of his expansion of the cotton­
manufacturing business. Of two storeys and built 
over the tailrace (outfa ll ) of the mill - Iade, they 
were converted to residential use in 1996-98. 
(SC754945) 

20. Village Hall (previo usly C hurch) 
Built for the Church of Scotland, this simply 
designed neo-Gothic church dates from 1898 
and was deconsecrated in the early 1970s. 
It is now used for co mmuni ty meetings. 
(SC7549 14) 

J9. Wee Row and Double Row viewed from the site of 
Mantilla Row (demolished) 
These tenements were built in the first maill phase of 
construction in the late 18th century. Wee Row was 
converted to a Youth Hostel in 1994. One unit of Double 
Row is a Scheduled Ancient Monument and has been 
preserved as it was in the I 970s, when it was last occ upi ed. 
(SC754923) 
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Key to numbered buildings 

1. Mill Number 1 • 

2. Mill Number 2 • 

3. Mill Number 3 • 

4. Site of Mill Number 4 
5. Water-houses 
6. Steam-engine House * 

7. Institution for the Formation of Character * 
8. School for Chi ld ren * 
9. Foundry * 

10. Dye Works * 

6. Steam-engine House 
Bu ilt in 1881 , it housed a steam engine 
which provided auxiliary power to Mill 
N umber 3 by means ofrope drives between 
the two buildings. The engine now insta lled 
was transferred from a mi ll in Selkirk and 
although smal ler than the original it was 
made by the same manufacturer, .T Petrie of 
Rochdale. (SC755076) 
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11 . Gas Retort House 
12. Mechanics ' Workshop 
13. Counting House 
14. Vill age Store ' 
15. Nursery Buildings 
16. New Buildings and Bell Tower * 
17. Robert Dwen's House' 
18. David Dale 's House 

19. Site of Mantilla Row 
20. Village Hall (previously Chu rch) • open to public 

7. Institution for the Formation of Character 
One of Robert Owen's key innovations, the Lnstitu tion is 
the grandest commun ity building at New Lanark, complete 
with an impressive entrance portico. Opened 00 1st 
Jaouary 1816, when an inspiring address was given to the 
inhabitants by Robert Owen, it was the hu b of the social and 
educational life oftbe vi ll age. The bui lding is still used by 
the community ; th e im age shows it decorated for the local 
' Lanimer' festival. (SC7 54855) 

1R. David Dale's House 
Situated overlooking the centre of the village, this 
two-storey, three-bay detached house was built in 
the late 18th cent.ury for the founder of New Lanark, 
David Dale. The s ing le-storey wings are s lightly 
later additi ons. The house was used by Dale 's 
family and later by a succession of mill owners and 
managers. (SC754989) 

100m 
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8. Sc hool for Children 

17. Rohert Owen 's House 
Along with David Dale's House, this imposing 
property is one of only two detached houses in the 
vi ll age and was built in the late 18th century for tbe 
use of mill owners and managers . It IlOW houses an 
exhibition about New Lanark's most famous owner, 
Robert Owen. (SC75498 1) 

car park for day visitors 

• 

Another ofRobert Owen's add itions to the vi ll age, the School was completed in 1817. Children up to the 
age often were taught, with an emphas is on creative and physical activiti es as well as basic education . There 
are gall eries in the main rooms on the tor floo r that may have been used for performances by musicians. 
(SC754887) 

] 6. New Buildings and Bell Tower 
Begun in 1798 by David Dale as tenements for 
hOLlsing mill workers and including a meeting 
room probably used for religious purposes, New 
Bui ldings were adapted around 1810 by Robert 
Owcn. The d istinctive bell tower was moved to its 
present pos ition from Mill Number 1 in the mid 
19th century. (SC755009) 

IS. ' ursery Buildings (corner image) 
Begun in 1809, the ursery Buildings were built 
by Robert Owen to house child workers who had 
hitherto lived in Mill Number 4. An example of 
Owen's desire to improve the working and living 
conditions for children who were employed in 
the mi ll s, it was later converted to house families 
after he had phased out the use of ehil d labour. 
(SC754951) 

14. Village Store (above right) 
Set up around 1810 by Robert Owen , the store 
was an early example of commerce conducted 
according to co-operative princi pies. [t sold high­
qual ity merchandi se at just above cost price to the 
workers in the vi ll age and the profits were used 
to help with the expenses of rurllling the scbool. 
(SC755082) 

13. Cou nting House and Caithness Row 
Overlooking the main village square, the bow­
ended counting house was added to the tenements 
of Caithness Row by Robert Owen around 1810. 
It was th e admini strative hub of the village, an d 
was used for document storage and tbe payment 
of wages. Caithness Row, which was completed 
in the 1790s, was named after the large number of 
northern H ighJanders who worked at ew Lanark. 
(SC755046) 

12. Mechanics'Wo,·kshop 
Along with the foundry, the Mechanics' Workshop 
was an essential part of the manufacturing 
complex in providing facilities for the engineering 
and repair of machinery. (SC754955) 

11. Gas Retort House 
The gas retort hOllse and its octagonal stone 
chimney were built in the 19th century to provid e 
coal-gas lighting for the mill s and vil lage. 
(SC755080) 

10. Dye Wor'ks (corner image) 
The dye works, installed in part of the workshop 
complex when the mills began to diversify their 
production in the late 19th century, were converted 
out of part oftlle foundry. (SC755064) 

9. Foundry 
The iwn and brass fOUlldry, which formed part of 
the workshop complex beside the river at the south 
end of the village, supplied castings for use in the 
mill machinery and demonstrates the hi gh level of 
self-s uffic iency at New Lanark. (SC755068) 


